
The Washington State Department of Enterprise Services

Request for 

Pierce County Readiness Center

Camp Murray, Tacoma

This Addendum consists of three

decisions arising from the first round of proprietary meetings and/or clarifications or new 

Owner requirements; and (3) attachments

 
1. This following responses are offered to submitted D/B Finalist questions

 
# Date Reference 

Section 
Question or Comment

1 06-25-
2014 

General code 
reference 

Does UFC 1
Requirements, with Change 1, dated 7/1/13 apply 
to the Pierce County Readiness Center?
  
UFC 1
6
means of egress requirements.
600
101 for building construction related to egress and 
safety to life.
  
Should the designer use Chapter 10 from the 
International Building Code or Chapter 7 from the 
NFPA 101 Life Safety Code for determining egress 
requirements?
 

2 06-20-
2014 

General design Please confirm 60% male to 40% female ratio for 
showers.

3 06-20-
2014 

RFP Section II – 
Design-Build 
Contract, 3-12-(2) 

Section II 3.12 notes a 30% energy use reduction 
below ASHRAE
calls for a 20% reduction 

4 06-23-
2014 

RFP Section III, 
List of Exhibits 

The last page of the contract in the RFP (pg 63 of 
63) lists a number of exhibits which have not been 
pr
with contract execution or provide same.
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The Washington State Department of Enterprise Services

Project No. 2013-295 

Request for Proposal – Design-Build 

Pierce County Readiness Center 

Camp Murray, Tacoma, WA 

 
three parts: (1) responses to fifteen submitted questions

decisions arising from the first round of proprietary meetings and/or clarifications or new 

s; and (3) attachments. 

following responses are offered to submitted D/B Finalist questions

Question or Comment DES Response

Does UFC 1-200-01 General Building 
Requirements, with Change 1, dated 7/1/13 apply 
to the Pierce County Readiness Center? 
 

UFC 1-200-01 directs the designer to use UFC 3-
600-01 in lieu of IBC Chapter 10 for determining 
means of egress requirements.  In turn, UFC 3-
600-01 directs the designer to comply with NFPA 
101 for building construction related to egress and 
safety to life. 
 

Should the designer use Chapter 10 from the 
International Building Code or Chapter 7 from the 
NFPA 101 Life Safety Code for determining egress 
requirements? 
 

The building needs a permit from 
Pierce County which requires IBC 
compliance.
higher standard such as window 
performance tho
to as well.
 

Please confirm 60% male to 40% female ratio for 
showers. 

Yes, confirmed.
 

Section II 3.12 notes a 30% energy use reduction 
below ASHRAE 90.1-2007, while Section IV, 4.0.D 
calls for a 20% reduction - please clarify. 

Provide 20% reduction.
 

The last page of the contract in the RFP (pg 63 of 
63) lists a number of exhibits which have not been 
provided.   Please confirm that these will be issued 
with contract execution or provide same. 

Yes, these will be issued with 
contract execution.

  

The Washington State Department of Enterprise Services 

submitted questions; (2) seven 

decisions arising from the first round of proprietary meetings and/or clarifications or new 

following responses are offered to submitted D/B Finalist questions: 

DES Response 

The building needs a permit from 
Pierce County which requires IBC 
compliance.  Where UFCs set a 
higher standard such as window 
performance those need adhered 
to as well. 

Yes, confirmed. 

Provide 20% reduction. 

Yes, these will be issued with 
contract execution. 
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5 06-20-
2014 
 

RFP Section III – 
Design-Build 
Contract 
Management, IV 

“Post Award 
Submittals 
General,” B-5 

Time constraints state” Provide document submittal 
dates and review periods within project scheduling 
that supports the overall project completion and 
providing sufficient time for owner to review 
documents.”  Please provide time required for 
owner (including DES, WMD, ANG) review of the 
design submittal. 

10 business days. 

6 06-26-
2014 
 

RFP Section IV - 
Design Program 
- Narratives, 5.0 

“ARCHITECTURA
L NARRATIVE,” 
A-7 

The facility must comply to the extent applicable 
with the “Washington State Military Department 
Design Manual and Standard Specifications.” 
Where can the proposers find the above-noted 
document? 

See attached. 

7 06-20-
2014 

RFP Section IV - 
Design Program 
- Narratives, 13.0 

“FIRE 
PROTECTION 
DESIGN 
CRITERIA”  
 

Please confirm that wet pipe standard fire 
protection sprinklers are required throughout the 
facility, specifically that preaction or gaseous 
systems are not required at IT rooms. 

The ground floor primary telecom 
room (i.e. TER or 
Telecommunications Equipment 
Room) shall have a FM 200 
system and a pre-action water 
system. 

8 06-23-
2014 

RFP Section IV - 
Design Program 
- Narratives, 14.0 

“ELECTRICAL – 
POWER 
DISTRIBUTION 
DESIGN 
CRITERIA,” D  
 
and 
 
RFP Section V, 
Design Program 
– Program, 
Room Data 
Sheets, 
Drawings and 
Diagrams, 1.0 

“INTRODUCTION 
AND 
OVERVIEW,” C-
15 
 

In the Design Program under item 15 it states “The 
facility will include an emergency power generator 
with capacity adequate to support 100 percent of 
the facility functions.” While under the RFP Sec 4, 
Design Program Narratives under section 14.0 
Electrical – Power Distribution Design Criteria sub 
paragraph D it states “Provide a diesel 
engine/generator for this project that serves 
Emergency, Legally Required, and Optional 
Standby loads as follows:G”  The loads listed are 
specific sub systems and not the entire facility.  
Please confirm if the generator is to power the 
entire facility? 

In Section V, Design Program – 
Program, Room Data Sheets, 
Drawings and Diagrams, 1.0 

“INTRODUCTION AND 
OVERVIEW,” C-15, CHANGE 
“100 percent” to read “35 percent.” 

9 06-20-
2014 

RFP Section IV - 
Design Program 
- Narratives, 18.0 

“TELECOMMUNI
CATION 
INFRASTRUCTU
RE DESIGN 
CRITERIA,” D-1 
 

Please confirm that CAT 6 cabling is the desired 
basis of design (there are conflicting references 
between CAT6 and more expensive CAT6A in the 
RFP) 

Cat 6A is required. 
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10 06-20-
2014 

RFP Section V - 
Design Program – 
Program, Room 
Data Sheets, 
Drawings and 
Diagrams, 7.0 

“PROJECT 
SPECIFIC ROOM 
CRITERIA,” C 

Please clarify stainless steel vs galvanized mesh 
required at SIPRnet room (Section V, 7.0 C) 

See SIPRNET information in 
Addendum No. 1 for construction 
and Addendum No. 2 for function. 
 

11 06-20-
2014 

RFP Section V - 
Design Program – 
Program, Room 
Data Sheets, 
Drawings and 
Diagrams, 11.0 

“ROOM DATA 
SHEETS,” Page 32 
of 33 

Regarding the SIPRnet room:  How many 
workstations or desks are needed in this area? 
 Do equipment racks need to be separated?  

See attached sample floor plan 
indicating interior arrangement of 
room furnishings.  Adjustments to 
thisplan are acceptable provided 
the following is accommodated: 

• (20) total individual 
workstations, each with 
5-foot-wide work 
surface. 

• (1) Briefing Room to 
accommodate 49 (in 
closely spaced chairs). 

• (1) Sign-in work area. 

• (1) Private Office 

• Space for 
communications 
equipment and safes.  

12 06-20-
2014 

RFP Section V - 
Design Program – 
Program, Room 
Data Sheets, 
Drawings and 
Diagrams, 11.0 

“ROOM DATA 
SHEETS,” Page 33 
of 33 
 
snd 
 
RFP Appendix 1-b, 
NG PAM 415-12 

Regarding the simulator room:  More information 
is requested, including "foxhole", compressor (in 
MEP with enclosure?), simulator equipment 
requirements, etc.  Is a single door access wide 
enough?  Are no windows/daylighting desired?  Is 
raised floor required (if so, is it to be provided by 
the D/B team or with equipment vendor).  Is the 
simulator the EST 2000? 

See attachments for Training 
Device / Simulation Room. 
 
Note: Room does not require an 
exterior wall. 

13 06-25-
2014 

RFP Section V - 
Design Program – 
Program, Room 
Data Sheets, 
Drawings and 
Diagrams, 13.0 

“PRE-DESIGN 
SITE PLAN 
DIAGRAM” 

We have heard several varying requirements for 
the trucks that will be used in the Training Bays. 
We have heard that they need to accommodate a 
large PLS truck, and 100ft turning radius. For a 
point of comparison, a large fire truck has a 
turning radius of 50’, and a large semi has a 
turning radius of around 60’. Please confirm the 
size of truck and turning radius requirements, as 
the 100ft may be excessive. These trucks also 
need to navigate the Camp Murray roadways in 
general, in order to get to this site location. 
 

Access drives for Training 
Workbays must support vehicles 
with 55’ turning radii.  
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14 06-20-
2014 

RFP Section V - 
Design Program – 
Program, Room 
Data Sheets, 
Drawings and 
Diagrams, 19.0 

“TELEVISION 
DISTRIBUTION 
DESIGN 
CRITERIA” 

Please clarify, Section IV 19.0 notes television 
service throughout the building; however, 
Appendix 3J notes cable television at not 
applicable. 

Provide RG 11 cable to Building 
19 from the primary telecom room 
with (4) passive amplifiers in 
existing manholes.  Provide RG 6 
cable within the PCRC with S-type 
connectors from telecom room to 
classrooms, conference rooms 
(except SIPRNET), the entrance 
lobby, and (4) Assembly hall 
locations. 
 

15 06-20-
2014 

RFP Appendix 3-f, 
“Price Proposal 
Cost Estimate” and 
3-j “Design-
Builder/Owner 
Responsibility 
Matrix” 

Under line item Z1050, Form state “Permits - 
Building (paid by owner)”.  RFP App 3 J – Design 
Builder Owner Responsibility matrix indicate 
General Building Permit Fees is by Design 
Builder.   Please clarify if Building permit is to be 
paid by owner or Design Builder. 

The D/B Contractor shall pay for 
the building permit. 

 

2. This following identify decisions made during the first round of proprietary meetings 

and/or clarify or define new Owner requirements: 
# Date Reference 

Section 
Issue DES Response 

16 N/A RFP Section I – 
Design-Build 
Proposal 
Requirements, 3.0 

“PRE-SUBMITTAL 
PROCEDURES 
AND 
REQUIREMENTS,” 
B 

Site access 
 

D/B finalists are permitted access 
to the project site at times other 
than identified in the RFP.  

17 N/A RFP Section IV - 
Design Program - 
Narratives, 4.0 

“SUSTAINABILITY 
& LEED 
NARRATIVE,” A-1-
a 
 
and  
 
RFP Appendix 3-j 
“Design-
Builder/Owner 
Responsibility 
Matrix” 

LEED EA-c3 - Enhanced Commissioning 
 

The Owner will hire an 
independent commissioning agent 
as required to support the D/B 
Contractor to achieve this credit.  
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18 N/A RFP Section IV - 
Design Program - 
Narratives, 5.0 

“ARCHITECTURAL 
NARRATIVE,” A-1 

Overarching criteria/Design aesthetic 
 

In expressing the desire for a 
modern building, the Owner 
intends the building to be 
“contemporary” rather than to 
impose a starkly modern 
statement onto Camp Murray.  
The Owner intends the building to 
be respectful of the adjacent 
historic district and reflect the 
traditions of the Army National 
Guard, but without being literal or 
dogmatic.  

19 N/A RFP Section IV - 
Design Program - 
Narratives, 9.0 

“CONVEYANCE 
SYSTEMS,” A 

Elevator 
 

ADD that elevator provisions must 

include an Elevator Machine 
Room.  Machine roomless 
elevator technology is not 
permitted. 

20 N/A RFP Section V - 
Design Program – 
Program, Room 
Data Sheets, 
Drawings and 
Diagrams, 3.0 

“SPACE 
REQUIREMENTS 
AND 
ASSUMPTIONS,” 
A “Summary of 
Requirements” 

Total gross building area 
 

ADD new sentence “Violating the 

gross square footage by more 
than 2% is prohibited.” 

21 N/A RFP Section V - 
Design Program – 
Program, Room 
Data Sheets, 
Drawings and 
Diagrams, 11.0 

“ROOM DATA 
SHEETS,” Page 31 
of 33 

Mechanical/Electrical/Telecom Rooms 
 

Note in Remarks the existing 
requirement that telecom rooms 
be stacked in multistory 
construction. 
 
ADD new Remarks as follows: 

• Ground floor primary 
telecom room (i.e. TER 
or Telecommunications 
Equipment Room) shall 
be minimum 400 sf.  
The TER will be shared 
with the future Joint 
Force Headquarters. 

• Mechanical and 
electrical rooms will not 
be shared with the 
future Joint Force 
Headquarters. 

• For VSAT 
accommodations 
provide (2) 4” capped 
conduits for cable pass-
through by others from 
TER to outside of 
building, in two 
directions [i.e. (4) 4” 
conduits total].  Final 
locations to be 
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determined by Owner. 

• For VSAT 
communication provide 
access port in building 
wall where building 
abuts Military Vehicle 
Parking area.  VSAT 
requires southern sky 
access. 

22 N/A RFP Section V - 
Design Program – 
Program, Room 
Data Sheets, 
Drawings and 
Diagrams, 13.0 

“PRE-DESIGN 
SITE PLAN 
DIAGRAM” 

Site extent, north edge. 
 

The Owner will permit the north 
boundary of the site to be 
extended to the north pavement 
edge of Infantry Drive.  The D/B 
Finalists may propose abandoning 
this paved road as a public 
thoroughfare.  Note that there are 
existing utilities along this road 
cannot be disturbed.  
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3. This following reference documents are attached herein for the D/B Finalists’ use: 

a. Washington State Military Department Design Manual and Standard 

Specifications, May 2011 (124 pages). 

b. SIPRNET Sample Plan (1 sheet, PDF format). 

c. Engagement Skills Trainer (EST) 2000 Facility Notes (6 pages).  Note:  This 

equipment imposes design requirements on the Training Device / Simulation 

room. 

d. DA PAM 350-9: Engagement Skills Trainer (EST) 2000 (4 pages).  Note:  This 

equipment imposes design requirements on the Training Device / Simulation 

room. 

e. EST 2000 Site Preparation Checklist (7 pages).  Note:  This equipment imposes 

design requirements on the Training Device / Simulation room. 

f. Engagement Skills Trainer (EST) 2000 diagrams, electrical requirements, and 

operating environment (4 sheets).  Note:  This equipment imposes design 

requirements on the Training Device / Simulation room. 

g. Construction Drawings – Camp Murray CSMS Yard Drainage Design – As-Built 

Record 9/2009 (5 sheets, PDF format).  Note: These drawings describe the 

existing infiltration gallery available on-site. 

h. Washington Military Department Stormwater Management Program 2014 (18 

pages).  

i. Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan for CSMS Building Demolition, preparation 

date November 25, 2013 (38 pages).  Note: For reference only. This document 

was developed for the CSMS demolition project. 

j. Erosion Control Report for Camp Murray Entry Gate project, dated June 2010 (73 

pages).  Note: For reference only. This document was developed for construction 

of the camp Murray primary entry gate. 

2. This following reference documents repeat information above but are provided in 

AutoCAD format: 

a. SIPRNET Sample Plan (1 sheet). 

b. As-Built Storm Structures 7/2009 (1 sheet)  Note: PDF version of this document is 

included in Construction Drawings – Camp Murray CSMS Yard Drainage Design – 

As-Built Record 9/2009 provided above. 

 

This Addendum does not amend the due date or time for Proposals.  Proposals continue to be 

due on July 31, 2014 at 3:00 PM. 


